Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you'll enjoy
the following benefits:

- Efficient, integrated PDF viewing
- Easy printing

« Quick searches

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8,
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.



http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html


FOUNDED
MAY 15, 1821

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty

*

STAFF
Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk

*

MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214

*

MEETING TIMES
1% Wednesday each month at 3:30 p.m.

*

COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex
Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210

*

WEB SITE
www.fayettecountyga.gov

*

E-MAIL
administration@fayettecountyga.gov

Worksotote #genda

Board of Commissioners
September 5, 2012
3:30 P.M.

Call to Order.

Acceptance of Agenda.

OLD BUSINESS:

1.

Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt proposed amendments to
Ordinance 2012-11- Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Part Il County
Code, Chapter 3, Alcoholic Beverages, by establishing the correct time for
Sunday sales to commence.

NEW BUSINESS:

1.

Discussion by Commissioner Lee Hearn to consider amending Fayette
County’s Zoning Ordinance as it pertains to the number of dogs and cats
permitted on A-R zoned properties.

Fire and Emergency Services' staff will present architectural drawings of the
proposed Fire Station Number 3 replacement design.

Discussion of a draft policy for the use of prefabricated speed tables as traffic
calming devices.

Discussion of conceptual alignments for the Georgia Department of
Transportation’s (GDOT'’s) McDonough Road Widening Project (P.I. No.
742870).

Discussion of additional compliance documents required for Fayette County’s
Public Works’ Title VI Program.

Discussion of conceptual safety and operational improvements for the West
Fayetteville Bypass, Phase 3 (SPLOST Project No. R-28b).

Update on current SPLOST projects.





Agenda
September 5, 2012
Page Number 2

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:

ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:

COMMISSIONERS REPORTS:

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

ADJOURNMENT:







COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Commissioners Presenter(s): Commissioner Lee Hearn
Meeting Date: Wednesday, September 5, 2012 Type of Request: [New Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Discussion by Commissioner Lee Hearn to consider amending Fayette County's Zoning Ordinance as it pertains to the number of dogs
and cats permitted on A-R zoned properties.

Background/History/Details:
Fayette County's Zoning Ordinance limits the number of dogs and cats, in a mixed or unmixed combination, to three animals per
property; irrespective to how the property is zoned.

During the March 2, 2011 Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting, the Board discussed how Fayette County's Zoning Ordinance
relates to the numbers of animals allowed on various properties. In that discussion, it was noted that a person living in A-R zoning could
own as many as 40 or more pigs, since they are unregulated, but that person could only have three dogs.

Commissioner Hearn would like the Board to reconsider the limitations placed on the numbers of dogs or cats permitted on A/R zoned
properties, and would appreciate input from the Board on how to best raise or remove those limitations.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
No action is sought at this time. Commissioner Hearn is seeking input and direction on this issue, with the intention of a formal vote on a
future agenda.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:






Floyd Jones

From: Dennis S. Dutton

Sent: Wednesday, August 29, 2012 4:12 PM

To: Floyd Jones

Subject: Number of animals kept shall be limited to three (3.)
Floyd:

Animals are defined in the County Ordinance as only domestic dog and domestic cat. This excludes fish, pet
birds such parrots, cockatiels, etc. It also states in the definition that number of animals kept shall be limited to
three. Then we back into the ordinance’s interpretation by regulating owners of more than three animals (dogs
and/or cats) as meeting the Conditions of an Animal Hospital, Kennel, and/or Veterinary Clinic. I have attached
the various excerpts from the Zoning Ordinance dealing with the number of animals in a household. See below:

ARTICLE III. DEFINITIONS

Sec. 3-1.

Animal. For the purpose of this ordinance, the word animal shall mean either a domestic dog (canis
familiaris) or domestic cat (felis catus.) It shall not include livestock (see Livestock.) The number of
animals kept shall be limited to three (3.)

ARTICLE VII. CONDITIONAL USES, NONCONFORMANCES, TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR
OVERLAY ZONE,
AND COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

Sec. 7-1. Conditional Use Approval.

B. Conditional Uses Allowed:

4, Animal Hospital, Kennel (Commercial or Non-Commercial) and/or Veterinary
Clinic. (Allowed in A-R, C-C, C-H, and M-1 Zoning Districts):
All structures, pens, runs, or enclosures shall not be located closer than 300 feet from any
A-R or residential zoning district.

5. Animal Hospital and/or Veterinary Clinic. (excludes commercial and non-commercial
kennel) (Allowed in O-I Zoning District):
All structures shall not be located closer than 55 feet (30 foot buffer and 25 foot setback)
from any A-R or residential zoning district. No outside activity (runs, pens, or
enclosures) or boarding is allowed except during the convalescent period.

I hope this helps. Call me if you need answers.

Thanks,





Dennis S. Dutton
Zoning Administrator
Fayette County Planning & Zoning Department





Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011

Page 11

Director of Community Development Pete Frisina will discuss how the Zoning Ordinance relates the
number of animals allowed; and the issue of beekeeping.

Director of Community Development Pete Frisina discussed the Zoning Ordinance that relates to the
number of animals allowed, and he also spoke about beekeeping issues that had recently arisen in the
County. Mr. Mike Maxwell, a local beekeeper in Fayette County, also spoke to the Board.

Mr. Frisina reported that the first round of amendments to the current Zoning Ordinance had been
accomplished on December 9, 2010, and they encompassed issues that the County was trying to find
agreement with, but he was asked by the Board to remove the two issues currently under consideration,
and to return to the Board to get direction on how the Board wanted staff to address the numbers of
permitted animals and, more recently, issues related to beekeeping.

He explained that the current Zoning Ordinance permits a set number of dogs and cats that can be kept on
a residential lot, and basically it states that any resident in an R district, be it R-40 or R-20, is limited to
three dogs and cats. He continued that in areas zoned as A-R, C-C, C-H, and M-1, where a kennel being
the criteria used for everything, including a commercial kennel all the way to someone owning four dogs or
four cats. He reported that the initial recommendation was to do away with the limitations on cats and only
deal with dogs since “kennels” are more readily associated with dogs than cats. He asked if it was the
Board's desire to continue to regulate the number of cats that can be kept in a residential zoning district,
and if that is the Board’s desire it needs to be stated outright, because kennels need to be dealt with as
kennels. He continued that when the issue is pets, the County has seen situations where a person says
they have four dogs, and they do not have pens or runs since the dogs are kept in the house, and the
County is required to say that the house has to meet the setback. He spoke about surrounding
communities and counties, and how they handle the issue, including some that regulate pets based on the
nuisance they could cause without regard to the actual numbers of cats or dogs located at a residence.

Commissioner Hearn asked if a person resided in A-R zoning, how many pigs could a person own. Mr.
Frisina replied the number of pigs were unregulated. Commissioner Hearn clarified that he could have 40
pigs on his property if he lived in A-R zoning but he would be limited to three dogs if he could not meet the
300-foot setback. Commissioner McCarty asked if he could have unlimited numbers of pigs without the
300-foot setback, and Mr. Frisina replied there were no setback requirements for pigs.



fjones

Highlight





Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011

Page 12

Commissioner Horgan said he agreed with Mr. Frisina, to separate the cats from the dogs in the ordinance.
Commissioner Brown added that it was “kind of bizarre” to put cats or dogs in a zoning ordinance, since
they should be regulated in their own separate ordinance, but that commercial kennels should be regulated
under zoning and there should be dictation concerning what type of zoning classification they should be
placed in. He thought classifying someone who lives in a single-family dwelling as having to have a kennel
was far-fetched and that language should be removed. He suggested that there be a dog and cat
ordinance, and then a commercial kennel ordinance. Commissioner Horgan also favored the City of
Fayetteville's approach of regulating pets on a nuisance basis instead of a numerical basis. Commissioner
McCarty suggested removing the “noncommercial kennel” language from the current Zoning Ordinance as
well. Commissioner Hearn also favored not regulating pets based on their numbers, but rather on their
nuisance. Discussion followed.

The Board suggested that the Ordinance should separate requirements placed on dogs from requirements
placed on cats. The Board further thought that commercial kennels should be regulated under Zoning, that
it was “far-fetched” to required a single-family dwelling to be a kennel, and that the language concerning
noncommercial kennels be removed with animals regulated under a dog and cat ordinances. The Board
also considered that regulating pets and animals based on a nuisance factor, rather than a numerical factor
may be the best approach to consider. The Board also considered removing the term “kennel” from
residential zoning.

The Board directed Mr. Frisina to prepare a recommendation that address its suggestions concerning
regulating dogs and cats, and to return to the Board at a later date.

The secondary area of concern was about regulations on beekeeping in Fayette County. He explained
that the County’s ordinance does not mention bees or beekeeping at all, but under Section 5-3, the County
looks at uses or classes of uses, and in researching bees and beekeeping, they are regulated by the
Department of Agriculture. He explained his thinking that bees are related to agriculture and therefore
would be allowed in A-R districts, but would not be allowed in a residential districts since they are not
agricultural districts. He said the two situations that drew the County’s attention was based on citizens’
complaints within residential subdivisions. He acknowledged that beekeeping is becoming a very popular
hobby, but that the bees cause problems that generate complaints. He asked the Board for direction on
how to address this issue. He informed the Board that one of the complaints involved a resident who told
his neighbors that he would put a beehive in his one-acre residential lot so the neighbors called the County;
one of whom complained about his son being highly allergic to bees. The second incident involved bees
swarming around a person’s pool for a good portion of a day.

Commissioner Frady commented that bees were beneficial to the County since they pollinate the plants,
and Commissioner Horgan suggested that regulations on beekeeping be determined on the size of a
person’s property, and not based on the zoning district they reside in.

Mr. Mike Maxwell, a beekeeper in Fayette County, addressed the Board about his understanding of the
Zoning Ordinance. He suggested that since beekeeping is not explicitly prohibited from the R-40 zoning.
He spoke about why he was cited over his honeybees, and he asked the Board to specify or create an
exception for a certain amount of bees. He suggested that the Board conduct a hearing to listen to
beekeepers discuss what types of hives would be appropriate for different sized lots. Discussion followed.





Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page Number 13

Concerning beekeeping, the Board considered regulations could be written based on the size of the
beekeeper’s property. The Board further suggested creating a committee of local beekeepers, for the
committee to include Planning and Zoning staff, and for the committee to study the beekeeping issue with
the view of presenting a draft ordinance before the Board. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
8", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.





Adult Day Care Facility. Adult day care facilities shall include any building, or portion thereof, used
to house four (4) or more adults requiring care, maintenance, and supervision for part of a day.

Agriculture. The raising of soil crops, including forestry and landscape planting materials, and/or
livestock in a customary manner on lots of land at least five (5) acres in size, including all associated

activities.

Aircraft. Any machine, whether heavier or lighter than air, used or designated for navigation of, or
flight in the air.

Aircraft Landing Area. Areas designed for safe landing and departures, including runways and
heliports.

Aircraft Hangar. A fully enclosed structure with operational doors designed to store aircraft and the
associated equipment or supplies needed for the operation and maintenance of the aircraft.

Airplane. A fixed-winged aircraft that is supported in flight by dynamic reaction of the air against its
wings.

Alteration. Any construction or renovation to an existing structure, other than repair.

Amphitheater. An open-air facility primarily used for entertainment purposes, commonly with tiers of
seats facing a performance stage.

Animal. For the purpose of this ordinance, the word animal shall mean either a domestic dog (canis
familiaris) or domestic cat (felis catus.) It shall not include livestock (see Livestock.) The number of
animals kept shall be limited to three (3).

Animal, Wild. This shall include any species or family or breed (including hybrids) of wild animals
listed by the Georgia Department of Natural Resources (DNR) as being wild per OCGA Title 27,

Chapter 5 as presently stated and as hereafter amended.

Antenna. A device used to transmit and/or receive radio-frequency signals, microwave signals, or
other signals transmitted to or from other antennas.

Apiary. A place where honeybees and beehives are kept. (Adopted 07/28/11)
Aquaculture. The hatching, raising, and breeding of fish and/or aquatic plants for food or fiber.

Artist Studio. A structure accommodating the practice of the full spectrum of the arts including, but
not limited to: fine arts, visual arts, and performing arts.

Athletic Facility. An area designated for athletic activity.
Automobile Service Station. A land use where gasoline, oils, greases, batteries, tires, and general
automobile accessories may be provided, but where no part of the premises is used for the storage or

dismantling of wrecked or junked vehicles.

Auxiliary Structure. A structure which is allowed incidental and secondary to a residence.



fjones

Highlight





Junk/Auto Grave Yard. Property used for outdoor storage, keeping, abandonment, sale or resale of
junk, including scrap metal, rags, paper or other scrap materials, used lumber, salvaged house
wrecking and structural steel materials and equipment, or for the dismantling, demolition, or
abandonment of automobiles or other vehicles or machinery or parts thereof.

Junked Automobile. (see Vehicle, Abandoned)

Kennel. Any location where any combination of animals are kept in excess of three (3) shall be
deemed to be a kennel. This definition does not include a location where one (1) litter of dogs or cats
of not more than six (6) months of age are kept.

Kindergarten. (see School, Private)

Landscape Areas. A maintained area of grass and/or ornamental planting materials.

Livestock. Animals including, but not limited to: horses, cattle, goats, sheep, pigs, pot bellied pigs,
chickens, ducks, geese, mules, rabbits, emu/ostrich, buffalo, chinchilla, fox, mink or other fur-bearing
animal, and llamas. This term shall be deemed to specifically exclude domestic dogs and domestic

cats.

Loading Space. Space logically and conveniently located for pick-up and delivery service, scaled to
the vehicles expected to be used, and accessible to such vehicles at all times.

Lot. A tract of land of varying size which is designated as a single unit of property.

Lot, Corner. A lot located at the intersection of two (2) streets.

Lot Depth. The distance between the front and rear lot lines.

Lot, Interior. A lot which has frontage on only one (1) street.

Lot, Landlocked. A lot of record having no frontage on a street.

Lot, Through. A lot, other than a corner lot, having frontage on more than one (1) street.

Lot Width, Minimum. The minimum distance between side lot lines either measured in a straight line

parallel to the street right-of-way or tangent and perpendicular to the mid-point of the right-of-way in
the case of the turn around portion of a cul-de-sac along the front minimum building line (see graphic.)



fjones

Highlight





		Commissioers- Lee Hearn Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Lee Hearn Backup

		Microsoft Outlook - Memo Style

		Lee Hearn- Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Engineering Presenter(s): Phil Mallon
Meeting Date: Wednesday, September 5, 2012 Type of Request: [New Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Discussion of a draft policy for the use of prefabricated speed tables as traffic calming devices.

Background/History/Details:

Since the installation of speed tables on McElroy Road in 2008, Public Works has received several requests for additional tables in other
areas of the County. Currently, these requests have been tabled until a traffic calming program can be developed and considered by the
Board for adoption. To start this process, staff has suggested some guiding principles for the program.

If approved to move forward, Public Works will prepare a "Policy for Use of Speed Tables on Local Roads" and "A Citizen's Guide for
Requesting Speed Table Installation”.

The following documents are included as back-up to this agenda request:

A. Guiding principles for Draft Policy;

B. March 27, 2007 memorandum from Jack Krakeel and Lee Hearn to Jack Smith (Chairman)

C. The Economic Impact of Speed Humps on Housing Values by Bretherton, Edwards and Miao; and
D. Gwinnett County's brochure on Residential Speed Control Program.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

No action is requested. Staff seeks the Board's direction on whether to proceed with developing a formal policy and Citizen's Guild for
use of Speed Tables.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
No funding required at this time.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:






Draft Principles for Use of Speed Tables in Unincorporated Fayette County
P. Mallon, Engineering Department
August 22, 2012

Background Information

Prefabricated Speed Tables are engineered structures designed to achieve a specific result on
vehicle operation without imposing an unacceptable or unreasonable safety risk. Motorists can
travel over a speed table at speeds close to the posted speed limit with little or no discomfort.

Speed Bumps are abrupt devices that must be crossed at slow speeds and are typically used in
parking lots and driveways.

Guiding Principles

1. ldentify a Sponsor. The Sponsor shall be a property owner proximate to the area with
the speeding problem.

2. Fayette County shall conduct a traffic study to measure volume, speed and directional
data. Data shall be collected over a 24-hour period.

3. Data from the traffic study shall identify the 85" percentile of speed. The 85"
percentile shall be at least 11 mph or greater than the posted speed limit in order for a
speed table to be considered.

4. Only prefabricated speed tables shall be used on County Roads. Prefabricated units
ensure proper approach/departure angles, correct table width, reflectivity, uniformity,
and may be removed.

5. Speed tables shall only be used on County Local or Internal Local roads with posted
speed limits of 30 mph or less.

6. The demand for a speed table shall be expressed in terms of a petition indicating if
property owners are supportive or against installation. Support is required from at least
2/3rcIS of all property owners within 1,000 ft of the proposed location. Individuals
unwilling or not able to sign the petition shall be counted as a “no” vote.

7. The 1,000-ft distance shall be measured along the road centerlines and shall extend
down all interesting road until the 1,000-ft limit. Exception, if a speed table is proposed
within a subdivision the 1,000-ft limit does not have to extend beyond the subdivision
entrance.





8. Speed tables shall be purchased by Fayette County and meet specifications set by the
Engineering Department.

9. The Sponsor shall pay the County 80 percent of the purchase cost for the speed table(s),
although the units shall be owned exclusively by the County.

10. Speed tables shall be installed, maintained, repaired, and replaced (if needed) by the
Road Department.

11. If warranted, the number and location of speed tables shall be established by the
Engineering Department, with input from the Sponsor and Road Department.





W %
Whene Quality e A4 Lifestyle
DATE: March 27, 2007
TO: Jack Smith, Chairman
FROM: Jack J. Krakeel, Lee Hearnl
CC: Chris Venice
RE: Traffic Calming Devices
History: Per your request, the Public Safety Director along with the Public Works

Director has conducted an analysis of traffic calming devices for utilization in Fayette
County. The basis for this analysis is predicated on various historical requests by
homeowners to limit the utilization of subdivisions streets as a pass through convenience
by motorists and in addition to reduce the speed of vehicular traffic through a
subdivision. The current request by the homeowners in the Wellington Place Subdivision
represents a continuation for relief that has been previously denied by the BOC. The
current request from the subdivision is for the installation of speed bumps.

Traffic Calming Devices:  Significant research has been conducted within the last
several years on the effectiveness and utilization of speed calming devices. Based on our
research of various communities that have implemented the utilization of these devices,
the use of speed bumps is not recommended as a traffic calming device other than in
driveways and parking lots. However, other alternatives have proven successful in
reducing speeds to less than 30 MPH.'

These devices include traffic circles, lane narrowing devices, chicanes, speed tables and
speed cushions. The latter two are in effect speed humps that consist of wide elevated
platforms with a gradual incline to 4” in height, lengths varying from 7 to 21’ and a
sloping decline. Commercial prefabricated units are available that can be bolted to the
street surface. Asphalt, concrete and brick applications are also being utilized.?

Considerations: The implementation of a program that allows for the installation of
traffic calming devices has been undertaken by many local governments based on

' MUTCD, 2003 Edition, U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, p. 1A-2,
Section 1A.06
2 ITE, “Guidelines for the Design and Application of Speed Humps, May 1993

Mailing Address: 140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville, GA 30214 « Main Phone: 770-460-5730 « Website: www.fayettecountyga.gov





objective criteria. Should the BOC wish to pursue a program of this nature the following
issues should be taken into consideration:

1. Emergency Response Impediments — Based on our analysis, speed bumps
create significant delays in emergency vehicle response times > 60 sec. versus
speed tables or cushions that on average delay responses < 15 sec. This delay
does not create a serious compromise of public safety emergency response
capability.

2. County Thoroughfare Plan — The County’s thoroughfare plan identifies three
primary street classifications that include arterials, collectors and local streets.
The classification system is based on the need to balance traffic movement
and accessibility. Arterials serve to move large volumes of traffic, collectors
generally distribute traffic from local streets to arterials and local streets serve
to provide access to adjoining properties and circulation within a limited area.
Subdivision streets are generally classified as local streets. It is recommended
that utilization of these devices be limited to local streets only.

3. Speed Limit — The purpose of traffic calming devices is to essentially slow the
speed of vehicular traffic where other devices have failed to reach the desired
effect including posted speed limits, stop signs and traffic enforcement
initiatives. It is recommended that local streets with posted speed limits of 25
MHP or less be one of the criteria for consideration.

4. Traffic Studies — Traffic studies should be conducted to determine if there is a
need for traffic control devices. These studies can be done electronically or
through the use of traffic enforcement tools to determine average speeds.

5. Resident Agreement — The County has a process for the voluntary agreement
between affected property owners for action by the BOC that requires 70% of
property owners to agree to a petition for paving a dirt road. A similar
modified process could be utilized for petitions requesting traffic calming
devices. Gwinnett County requires the use of the 85" percentile of a speed
study as the indicator for when reasonable speeds are exceeded. This indicator
is then utilized to determine the number of citizens required to agree to a
petition.

a. Ifthe 85" percentile is at least 11 mph over the posted 25 mph speed
limit, a petition for traffic calming devices required 70% of the
affected Eroperty owners to agree to file a petition for consideration.

b. If the 85" percentile is between 30 and 35 mph, a waiver may be
requested and require 90% of the affected property owners agree to a
petition.

c. Ifthe 85" percentile falls below 30 mph no traffic calming devices are
recommended since their function is to reduce speeds to below 30
mph. »

6. Cost - Based on our research with communities that have installed these
devices, the cost for an asphalt speed table is approximately $2000.
Commercial prefabricated units which can be removed range in price from
$3000-$5000.






7. Other Considerations:

a. Aesthetics/Property Values — Frequently cited as an argument against
the implementation of a traffic calming program is that it will diminish
property values along the effected street. Gwinnett County has had a
Residential Speed Control Program in effect since 1992. With
approximately 1000 installations to date, they recently conducted an
economic impact study to determine program impact on property
values. The results of their analysis revealed no adverse effect on the
resale value of properties.” (Study Attached)

Wellington Place Subdivision

Residents of this subdivision have previously requested the installation of traffic bumps
on the primary ingress and egress route through the subdivision known as E. Banks Rd.

The primary reason for their requests stems from the amount of traffic utilizing the local
street as a short cut between State Hwy. 54 and McElroy Rd. Posted speed limits on the
street is 25 mph. Traffic enforcement has recorded speeds exceeding 70 mph, numerous
stop sign violations as well as high traffic volumes.

E. Banks Rd. is a local street that serves the residents of the Wellington Place
Subdivision. The street is approximately 2500’ in length and serves as a connector for
two cul-de-sac streets. Three way stop signs are located at the intersections of the cul-de-
sacs and E. Banks Rd. As a result these cul-de-sacs, the street can be subdivided into 3
distinct segments. The first segment which is approximately 550 in length begins at the
intersection of E. Banks Rd. and Hwy. 54 E and ends at Carrie Ct. The second segment
begins at Carrie Ct. and ends at Pamela Ct., a distance of approximately 840’. The third
segment begins at Pamela Ct. and terminates at the intersection of E. Banks Rd. and
McElroy Rd. for a distance of approximately 950°.

Design specifications recommend that speed tables should be installed at intervals of
approximately 350-500’. Based on this design recommendation, 3 speed tables would be
recommended on E. Banks Rd. The traffic control devices would be placed equidistantly
on the three identified road segments. (See attached Subdivision Plat)

Should the Board of Commissioners wish to pursue a Traffic Calming Program for
Fayette County the following actions are recommended:

a. Assignment of Lead Department
b. Development of Local Ordinance
¢. Development of Program Manual
d. Development of Citizen Information Package

Sample documents have been collected and are available as templates for program
design.

3 “The Economic Impact of Speed Humps on Housing Values”, W.M. Bretherton et al., Gwinnett County,
GA.





The Economic Impact of Speed Humps on
Housing Values

BY W. MARTIN BRETHERTON JR., VINCE EDWARDS

THE STUDY DISCUSSED
HERE ATTEMPTS TO
MEASURE THE EFFECT OF
SPEED HUMPS ON
PROPERTY VALUE. USING
BEFORE AND AFTER SALES
DATA, THE STUDY
EMPLOYED PROGRAM
EVALUATION TECHNIQUES
AND STATISTICAL
ANALYSIS TO COMPARE
NEIGHBORHOODS WITH
AND WITHOUT SPEED
HUMPS, MATCHING ON
OTHER IMPORTANT

CRITERIA.

AND JUN MIAO

50

AS ANY PUBLIC OFFICIAL WHO
has ever attended a neighborhood meeting
can attest, there are two subjects that will
ignite the passion of otherwise calm and
rational homeowners: their children’s
safety and anything that negatively affects
their property value. When speed humps
are suggested as a measure to control
speeding in the neighborhood, the normal
scenario plays this way: emotional argu-
ments about how something must be
done, followed by someone who will
express a concern about a perceived stigma
associated with speed humps, which may
result in their homes being less mar-
ketable. Do prospective home buyers view
speed humps as an amenity, or as a bother-
some, unattractive addition to the neigh-
borhood? The purpose of this evaluation
attempts to address this concern: Does
installing speed humps cause a change in
the market value of residential housing?

GWINNETT COUNTY SPEED-HUMP
PROGRAM

Gwinnett County, Ga., USA, is a
large, high-growth area northeast of the
metropolitan Atlanta area. The makeup
of the county ranges from densely popu-
lated, urban tracts in the western part of
the county to large, sparsely populated,
rural tracts to the east. The majority of
the county, however, is made up of subdi-
visions built since 1972. With thousands
of subdivisions, the issue of neighbor-
hood traffic management is a major
source of consternation.

With the passage
of a local option sales
tax approved by the
voters in 1992, and
renewed in 1996, funding was available
that allowed property owners to petition
for the installation of speed humps on
residential streets. Since January 1994,
the county has installed over 500 humps
in 90 neighborhoods.

Speed humps are popular despite the

fact that the county does not promote or
market the program. The emphasis from
departmental staff has been allowing
speed humps, as opposed to recommend-
ing them. Homeowners who want speed
humps on their street must go through a
rigorous process. Before the county will
install speed humps, the street must first
meet a speeding criteria. Speed studies
must indicate an 85th percentile speed in
excess of 35 miles per hour. Then, the
representatives of the homeowners’ group
must demonstrate via petition that 70
percent favor the humps as proposed by
the county. The homeowners also are
agreeing to an indefinite special assess-
ment fee of $12 added to their annual
property tax bill. Without exception,
each of the 74 neighborhoods approved
for speed-hump installation has com-
pleted this process.

STIGMAS ASSOCIATED WITH
SPEED-HUMP INSTALLATIONS

While some clearly want speed
humps, and some are probably neutral,
the question of a stigma associated with
speed humps always arises. The stigma is
expressed in different ways. Some suggest
that the humps draw attention to the fact
that the neighborhood has a speeding
problem, making it a less desirable place
to live. Others protest that speed humps
restrict their right to travel on smooth,
unimpeded streets, especially if they have
no other route of access to their property.

But by far, the most frequent concern
is the matter of aesthetics. Because
humps must be made visible, and warn-
ing signs are included, speed humps sim-
ply detract from the beauty of the
neighborhood. Families with no or older
children would be more likely to favor
aesthetic qualities over safety features.
Then, the implicit argument is that,
given a choice, many potential home
buyers would choose to live in a neigh-
borhood without speed humps, given

ITE JOURNAL 7 JANUARY 2000





Table 1. Criteria used for comparison neighborhoods.

Humps installed

Current price

Predominant

Subdivision name (Yes/No) range (1000) School cluster Year built housing style
Case #1 Harrison Ridge Yes low 100s Central Gwinnett 1986-1987 split level/siding
Hunters Cove No 110s Central Gwinnett 1986-1987 split level/siding
Case #2 Eastmont Cove Yes 120-130s Shiloh 1987-1988 two-story/partial brick
Parkwood Ridge No 115-120s Shiloh 1988-1989 two-story/partial brick
Case #3 Indian Springs, Unit 7 Yes high 80s Meadowcreek 1978 split level/siding
Indian Springs, Units 1-5 No low 90s Meadowcreek 1982 split level/siding
Case #4 Mountain Manor; Manor Estates Yes low 70s Shiloh 1979-1980 ranch/siding
Meadow Springs; Nappa Valley No low 80s Shiloh 1980 split level/siding
Case #5 Cardinal Lake Estates, Units 3-5, 9-11 Yes 120s Duluth 1965-1970 split level/siding
Cardinal Lake, 14 & 19; Lemon Tree No low 100s Duluth 1965-1970 split level/siding
Case #6 Valley Road Yes 90s Berkmar 1967-1969 ranch/brick
Lake Drive; Sweetwater Drive No 90s Berkmar 1969-1972 ranch/brick
Case #7 Peachtree Station, Units 4,5 & 6 Yes 210-220s Norcross 1980 two-story/brick traditional
Peachtree Station, Units 1, 2 & 3 No 210-220s Norcross 1979 two-story/brick traditional
Case #8 Wiaterford Park Yes low 100s Berkmar 1989 two-story/partial brick
Wiaterford Downs No 120s Berkmar 1991 two-story/partial brick
Case #9 Simpson Mill Yes 90s Duluth 1985 split level/siding
Plantation Oaks No 90s Duluth 1985 split level/siding
Case #10 Bromolow Creek Yes low 100s Duluth 1985 split level/siding
Sugar Mill No 110s Duluth 1986 split level/siding

that other important criteria, such as
school district, housing style, price range,
etc., are held constant.

GENERALIZATIONS DO NOT SEEM
TO HOLD

Conventional wisdom would seem to
hold that speed humps would be most
popular in entry-level neighborhoods
where young families predominate and
less desired in older, established neigh-
borhoods with few small children. At
first glance, however, this does not seem
to be the case. Mostly older, even retired
citizens occupy several speed-hump
neighborhoods in Gwinnett County. In
addition, some of the most vehement
objections to a speed-hump proposal
come from homeowners who seem to fit
a profile of a young family.

Also, there does not seem to be any
trend toward humps being accepted in a
certain price range or age. Speed humps
have been installed in neighborhoods with
houses priced in the $70,000 to $300,000
range. Speed humps have been installed
on streets where housing is still under con-
struction and also on streets representing
some of the county’s oldest developments.

ITE JOURNAL 7 JANUARY 2000

VALID COMPARISON GROUPS

Although no trends or generalizations
seem to be apparent, the main focus here
is on residential property value. The goal
of impact analysis is to try to determine
how much of a change, if any, can be
attributed to a particular intervention. In
the present case, the goal is to try to deter-
mine if installing speed humps on a street
caused the open, free-market transaction
price of abutting residential property to
be different than it would have been if no
humps had been installed. Fortunately,
sales data are available, and there are some
cases where the humps have been in place
long enough for a significant number of
sales to have taken place.

If it is indeed observed that properties
abutting streets with humps seemingly sell
at a different market price than properties
abutting untreated streets, is this difference
attributable to the humps, or is some other
factor or factors causing the difference?

To control for these factors, valid com-
parison groups must be collected. A major
difficulty in using comparison groups out-
side of the laboratory setting is that com-
parison groups may be different in some
important ways. Furthermore, residential

housing seems subject to many emotional,
nonmeasurable factors. Fortunately, cer-
tain variables are readily measurable, thus
comparable. For the purposes of this
study, the following variables were
matched when comparing before-and-
after sale prices of treated cases with
before-and-after sales price of comparison
groups: price range, housing style, year
built and school district, as shown in Table
1. To be considered a match, the test
neighborhood and its comparison had to
match closely on each of these criteria.

DATA COLLECTION METHODOLOGY

When this study commenced, approxi-
mately 74 neighborhoods had been treated
with speed humps. Thirty-nine of the 74
projects were begun after January 1996
and, therefore, not considered potential test
cases because not enough sales transactions
had taken place. The remaining 35 pro-
jects, all completed before December 1995,
were considered potential test cases. Of
these 35 potential cases, 17 were not used
because they were deemed unique. That is,
no “match” could be found in the terms
established for this study: price range, hous-
ing style, year built and school district.

51





Table 2. Before and after sales: Treated vs. untreated neighborhoods.

Date humps Average resale # of sales since Average resale Percentage
Subdivision name installed before intervention | humps installed after intervention increase
Case #1 Harrison Ridge February 1994 $83,807 $93,300 11%
Hunters Cove n/a $104,140 $115,466 11%
Case #2 Eastmont Cove March 1994 $118,541 22 $126,590 7%
Parkwood Ridge n/a $113,449 28 $120,385 6%
Case #3 Indian Springs, Unit 7 December 1994 $65,727 13 $87,007 32%
Indian Springs, Units 1-5 n/a $77,546 4 $93,950 21%
Case #4 Mountain Manor; Manor Estates February 1994 $57,476 6 $72,966 27%
Meadow Springs; Nappa Valley n/a $66,504 18 $83,805 26%
Case #5 Cardinal Lake Estates, Units 3-5, 9-11 July 1994 $110,321 11 $124,000 12%
Cardinal Lake, 14 & 19; Lemon Tree n/a $87,334 16 $103,718 19%
Case #6 Valley Road July 1994 $69,242 4 $89,900 30%
Lake Drive; Sweetwater Drive n/a $71,358 3 $91,860 29%
Case #7 Peachtree Station, Units 4,5 & 6 July 1994 $187,019 25 $214,664 15%
Peachtree Station, Units 1,2 & 3 n/a $181,846 21 $213,942 18%
Case #8 Waterford Park August 1996 $90,866 $106,300 17%
Waterford Downs n/a $102,845 $117,628 14%
Case #9 Simpson Mill March 1994 $80,360 13 $95,453 19%
Plantation Oaks n/a $80,036 7 $93,114 16%
Case #10 Bromolow Creek August 1994 $84,681 4 $102,925 22%
Sugar Mill n/a $89,150 14 $113,928 27%

Eighteen projects that had been com-
pleted prior to 1996 were identified, and
for each of these a comparison neighbor-
hood was found that matched all four
variables. Sales data were collected for the
18 speed-hump neighborhoods and the
18 comparison neighborhoods (no speed
humps). The date of the intervention,
hump installation, was determined. All
the sales that took place in each neigh-
borhood prior to the date of intervention
were averaged. Then, the sales that took
place after the date of intervention were
averaged. This was done for both the test
cases and comparison cases.

Ideally, if the test location and its com-
parison location were a good match, the
average sale price for the same time period
should be very close for both locations.
But, because percentage change over time
is being used for comparison, the before
average sales price of the test location
need not correspond precisely to the
before average sales price of the compari-
son location. However, if the average
before sales price of the test location is sig-
nificantly different from the average before
sales price of the comparison location,
perhaps the groups are dissimilar regard-

52

less of the selected criteria. Fortunately,
the data revealed that all 18 projects
selected for comparison matched closely
with their designated match in terms of
average resale before speed humps.

The crux of this study, then, is to com-
pare the average of the sales after the inter-
vention: If two neighborhoods are similar
in most significant characteristics, and, if
the average home sale is very similar before
a particular intervention, then any differ-
ence in values after the intervention may
be attributable to the intervention.

Through public records of real-estate
transactions, all “arms-length” sales of
properties before and after hump installa-
tion were recorded. Also, all sales for
properties in the comparison location for
the same time period as its match were
selected. Not included were transactions
that involved foreclosures, distress sales,
tax sales, in-kind considerations, gifts,
trades, or other such transactions.

Some of the cases lacked sufficient
data to draw any valid comparisons.
Eight test locations and their correspond-
ing comparison location were dropped
because too few sales transactions had
taken place since the speed humps were

installed. To be included in the results of
this study, at least four sales must have
taken place in both the test case and its
match. The findings of this study are
based on ten neighborhoods where a suit-
able match was found and where a suffi-
cient number of sales transactions had
taken place since the intervention.

WHAT THE DATA SHOWED

As expected, in all cases the housing
value increased. The largest percentage
increase was Indian Springs, Unit 7,
which increased 32 percent since having
speed humps installed in December
1994. The smallest percentage increase
was Parkwood Ridge, a comparison loca-
tion, which increased 6 percent after
March 1994. The largest discrepancy
between a test location and its match was
Indian Springs, Unit 7, which saw an
increase of 32 percent in resale value after
humps were installed, and Indian
Springs, Units 1-5, which realized a 21
percent increase for the same time
period. The smallest difference was
between Harrison Ridge and its match,
Hunters Cove, which both increased
approximately 11 percent, after humps

ITE JOURNAL 7 JANUARY 2000





were installed in Harrison Ridge in Feb-
ruary 1994 (see Table 2).

Based on these cases, no trends are
apparent. It is not evident that installing
speed humps in a neighborhood will
affect property values in any predictable
way. According to the composite average,
all neighborhoods, both with and with-
out speed humps, increased approxi-
mately 19 percent, for the same time
period (Figure 1). However, this cannot
be interpreted that speed humps have no
affect on resale value.

Harrison Ridge vs. Hunters Cove

Eastmont Cove vs. Parkwood Ridge

Indian Springs, No.7 vs Indian Springs, No.1-5

Mountain Manor vs. Meadow Springs

Cardinal Lk vs Cardinal Lk14 & 19

Valley Rd vs. Lake Drive, Sweetwater Drive

Peachiree Sta No. 4 - 6 vs. Peachtree Sta1-3

Waterford Park vs. Waterford Downs

Simpson Mill vs. Plantation Oaks

Bromolow Creek vs. Sugar Mill

COMPOSITE AVERAGE

| ®  comparison Locatn @  TestLocation |

STATISTICAL ANALYSIS

The effect of speed humps on the
real-estate value was assessed using the
linear-regression method. A linear-
regression model was proposed to estab-
lish the relationship between the Period

Figure 1. Percentage increase after speed-hump installation.

Table 3. Statistics of study cases.

real-estate value and the presence of
spee'd humps: The model hag a mathe- -- Standard
matical equation as the following: Case | Group # of sales resale deviation | #ofsales |  resale deviation
V=Cy+C;G+CyH+C3Y+C,Y2
where 1 | Study 57 $83,807 $6,345 $93300 | $10,313
Vis the resale value of the house; Control | 62 $104,140 $7,322 6 | $115467 $3,548
G is a dummy variable to differentiate 2 | study 136 $119,479 $8,775 22 | $126501 $7,641
the study and control groups, G = 0 for Control | 142 $113,449 $9,008 28 | $120,386 $8,181
the control groups and G = 1 for the 3 | study 81 $65,727 $8,929 13 $87,008 $6,903
study groups; Control 66 $76682 | $12,781 $93,950 $1,645
H is a dummy variable to represent 4 | Study 38 $57,476 $9,330 6 $72,067 $4,288
speed humps, H = 0 if there are no speed Control 9 $66,504 | $11,586 18 $83,806 $7,463
humps and H = 1 if there are speed 5 | Study 46 $130487 | $37,489 14 $138264 | $37,255
humps; Control 27 $94,226 $32,504 8 $110,113 $45,181
Y is the year during which the prop- 6 | Study 7 $69,243 $18,682 $89,900 $9,600
erty was sold; and Control 24 $71,358 $12,829 5 $91,860 $6,375
Cis (i=0,1, 2, 3, 4) are regression 7 | Study 69 $187,058 $20,065 25 $214,664 $17,434
coefficients. Control 47 $181,847 $18,218 21 $213,943 $14,127
Note that when there are no speed 8 | Study 18 $90,867 $6,736 $106,300 $11,571
humps, term C,H is equal to 0. When Control 96 $102,846 $9,264 7 $117,629 $8,061
there are speed humps, term C,H is 9 | Study 15 $80,360 $6,736 13 $95,454 $5,948
equal to C,. Therefore, C, actually repre- Control 19 $80,037 $6,490 7 $93,114 $5,392
sents the effect of speed humps (H) on 10 | Study 74 $84,681 $10,855 $102,925 $6,232
the real-estate value (V). A t-test can be Control 96 $89,150 $9,066 14 $113,929 $12,149
conducted to examine if C, significantly

deviates from 0. If C, is significantly

greater than O, the presence of speed
humps has a positive effect on the real-
estate value. If C, is significantly less
than 0O, the presence of speed humps has
a negative effect on the real-estate value.
The above regression model was applied
to a total of ten study cases. The real-estate
data used are summarized in Table 3.
Goodness-of-fit of a linear-regression
model is often measured by the coeffi-

ITE JOURNAL 7 JANUARY 2000

cient of determination R2, which indi-
cates the percentage of variance in the
data being explained by the model. R2
ranges from 0 to 1. The larger R2 is, the
better the model fits the data. An R2 of 1
means a perfect fit. Table 4 lists R2 for all
the cases being studied. As shown in the
table, the regression model fits the data
relatively well. In four out of ten cases, R?2
is greater than 0.60. In only two cases, R?2

is less than 0.40. The results of the regres-
sion analysis are shown in Table 4.

The effect of speed humps on the real-
estate value appears to be fairly random as
shown in Table 4. Among the ten cases
being studied, five have a positive C,, and
the other five have a negative C,. The
results of a t-test indicate that the effect of
speed humps on the real-estate value (C,)
is insignificant in all ten cases. Four cases

53





Table 4. Modeling results.

Degree of | Confidence
t statistic | freedom level Conclusion*
-0.22 128 0.17 Not significant
0.04 323 0.03 Not significant
1.58 159 0.88 Not significant
1.32 151 0.81 Not significant
-1.44 90 0.85 Not significant
0.09 35 0.07 Not significant
-0.25 157 0.20 Not significant
-0.02 119 0.01 Not significant
0.76 49 0.55 Not significant
-1.50 183 0.86 Not significant

Coefficient Standard
Cy error
1 0.71 -731.12 3,356.17
2 0.23 102.54 2,444.59
3 0.72 4,746.07 3,011.47
4 0.78 4,004.26 3,029.01
5 0.36 —-20,856.95 14,464.06
6 0.53 707.95 8,275.04
7 0.48 -1,315.17 5,206.27
8 0.52 -93.14 5,022.27
9 0.63 2,460.46 3,235.52
10 0.52 -7,567.00 5,051.83
*A critical confidence level of 0.95 is used.

have a relatively high (greater than .80)
level of confidence. Among these four
marginal cases, two have a positive C,,
and the other two have a negative C,.

In conclusion, it is found that the effect
of speed humps on the real-estate value is
fairly random and statistically insignificant.

STRENGTHS AND WEAKNESSES

The subject study has strengths and
weaknesses. One strength is that only sales
data from free-market transactions were
used. To the economist, the free market
provides a most pure laboratory setting.
Actual sales were examined instead of ask-
ing homeowners and home buyers how
they feel, or whether or not they like speed
humps. A second strength of the study is
the fact that most of the cases matched
very closely on the selected criteria.

The study would be further strength-
ened if longer time periods could be exam-
ined along with more sales transactions.
Secondly, many real-estate professionals
usually consider “time on the market,” a
factor not considered in this study, as a
strong indication of the marketability of a
particular property. For example, the

54

results of this study would be corroborated
if data revealed that test neighborhoods
were on the market, on average, the same
as their comparison neighborhoods.
Finally, the number of speed humps in the
test neighborhoods was not held constant.
While no test neighborhood had fewer
than four speed humps, one test location
had 15 humps. Perhaps properties located
at the end of a long series of humps may
be less marketable.

CONCLUSION

While not yet ubiquitous, speed
humps are no longer a novelty in Gwin-
nett County. Commonly, a citizen will
encounter speed humps in another
neighborhood and want them for their
own neighborhood. Seemingly, speed-
hump proponents are not limited to
frantic parents of young children. Speed
humps are becoming widely requested
and commonly accepted.

Despite the popularity of the speed-
hump program, some feel strongly that
installing speed humps will be a detri-
ment to the neighborhood. Many home-
owners would like to be able to sell their

property relatively quickly, and so, they
are keenly aware of property values. Trep-
idation about being unable to sell, or los-
ing equity in their single largest financial
obligation, is a real fear. However, is this
fear valid? According to the data, when
selecting speed humps as the dependent
variable in such a study, it cannot be
demonstrated that installing speed
humps will affect property values in any
predictable way. m

....................................................

W. MARTIN
BRETHERTON,
PE., is a Chief Engi-
neer with the Gwinnett
County Department of
Transportation (DOT),
Lawrenceville, Ga.
Bretherton manages the
Traffic Studies Section of the Gwinnett County
DOT. He is a Member of ITE and serves on the
Executive Committee for the Traffic Engineering
Council and is a member of the ITE Traffic
Calming Committee.

2

A
e
o

VINCE EDWARDS
is the Residential Pro-
gram Manager with the
Gwinnett County
Department of Trans-
portation, Lawrenceville,
Ga. He manages the
Gwinnett County Speed

Hump Program.
JUN MIAO,
Ph.D., PE., isa Princi-
pal Engineer with the
Gwinnett County
Department of Trans-
portation, Lawrenceville,
Ga. He manages the

i Gwinnett County Acci-

dent Records System. Miao is a Member of ITE.

ITE JOURNAL 7 JANUARY 2000





What is the difference between a speed
table and a speed bump?

Gwinnett County uses devices called speed
tables, which are designed to achieve a specific
result on vehicle operations without imposing
an unacceptable or unreasonable safety risk.
Motorists can travel along the street at speeds
close to the posted speed limit with little or
no discomfort.

Speed bumps, on the other hand, are abrupt
devices designed to be crossed at slow speeds,
and are mostly used in parking lots or private
driveways.

For more information

If you are interested in scheduling a speed study,
or would like further information about the
Gwinnett County Residential Speed Control pro-
gram, please use the contact information below.

gwinnettcounty

Department of Transportation

Traffic Engineering and Planning Division
75 Langley Drive

Lawrenceville, GA 30045

tel: 770.822.7400 « fax: 770.822.7478
Contact person: Brent Hodges
speedhumps@gwinnettcounty.com

gwinnettcounty

Department of Transportation

Traffic Engineering and Planning Division
75 Langley Drive

Lawrenceville, GA 30045

tel: 770.822.7400 « fax: 770.822.7478

10.08

gwinnettcounty.com

residential speed
control program

gwinnettcounty
Department of Transportation
Traffic Engineering and
Planning Division





Speed Table Program

Gwinnett County will consider speed table in-
stallation on streets classified as local, residen-
tial streets, with a speed of 25 mph, after an
evaluation of the severity of the speeding prob-
lem. Before speed tables can be installed, a pe-
tition will be circulated among the property
owners along the affected street, with at least 70
percent of the property owners approving the
proposal.

Although the Gwinnett County Department of
Transportation recognizes speed tables as an

effective method to reduce speeds, installation
of this traffic calming device can be controversial.

This brochure serves to outline key points in the
County's policy, and answer some common ques-
tions about the speed table program.

How does the speed table program work?
Once a complaint about speeding problems on
a residential street is received, County staff will
conduct a traffic study at the site. The traffic
counter, with two tubes placed on the road, will
collect the speed, volume, and direction data.
Based upon the results of this study, County staff
can determine the severity of a speeding problem
and the appropriate solutions for this location.

Depending upon the results of the speed study,
a speed table layout may be prepared and then
sent with a petition to the citizen making the re-
quest. At least 70 percent of the property own-
ers along the affected street will have to approve
the layout, on a formal petition, before the pro-
posal is forwarded to the Board of Commission-
ers for a public hearing. The petition process

allows the neighborhood to make the decision
if speed tables are the appropriate tool for traf-
fic calming.

What is the cost to the homeowners?
The speed table construction and installation
costs are paid from the current Sales Tax Pro-
gram, with no other cost to the homeowners.

A maintenance fee, currently $12.00 per vear, is
assessed on the property tax bill for each prop-
erty on the affected street.

Where are speed tables located?

Speed tables are not used to slow traffic a giv-
en point, but rather to reinforce a safe speed
along a street or street section. In most applica-
tions, they are spaced approximately 400 feet
apart since studies in Gwinnett County and ac-
ross the nation indicate that this is the most
effective method to reduce the 85" percentile
speed to between 28 and 30 mph. The first
table in a series is located near a controlled in-
tersection, to prevent a motorist approaching a
speed control district at excessive speeds. Speed
tables are not located on hills with a grade great-
er than eight percent.

Will stop signs reduce speeding in our
neighborhood?

Stop signs are used to assign right-of-way at busy
intersections. National standards have been
established to determine when stop signs are
warranted, taking into consideration traffic vol-
ume, sight distance, and accident history. Engi-
neering studies across the nation have shown
that multi-way stops do not work well as speed
control devices. While speeds decrease in the
immediate vicinity of unwarranted stop signs,
speeds often increase between stop signs as
drivers “make up for lost time,” thus any effect
that they have on speeds is purely local. Stop
signs also increase air pollution, waste fuel, and
create more traffic noise.

Most drivers are reasonable and prudent. When
confronted with unreasonable and unnecessary
restrictions, motorists are more likely to violate
them, which often leads to contempt for other

traffic signs. For this reason, the Gwinnett Coun-
ty DOT does not recommend multi-way stop
signs for speed control.

Why is a petition used?

Gwinnett County uses a neighborhood-driven
approach to residential speed control. In order
for the speed table to be effective, the installa-
tion should be supported by the property own-
ers along the subject street. The County staff is
responsible for managing the speed table pro-
gram, while the residents are responsible for
obtaining community support.

The petition is circulated in the neighborhood by
the requesting citizen or other community rep-
resentative. Each property owner listed on the
title (for example, a spouse or if the deed lists
“et al”) is required to sign the petition. When a

property owner offers to sign the petition, it is an
indication that he or she understands the speed
table proposal and the related information. A

witness is required to verify each signature.

Why is the petition signed by only the
residents of the subject street?

The petition coversheet, which should be read
by all affected property owners, outlines the
aspects of the speed hump program. The prop-
erty owners of the affected street (“‘defined
service area’) will become a part of a special
assessment district of properties that will di-
rectly benefit from the speed hump installation.
Once approved by the Board of Commissioners,
this special assessment district will be charged
the annual maintenance fee on their property
tax bill.

Residents on other streets will not be affected
since they will not be within the special assess-
ment district, and thus are not eligible to sign
the petition.





		Engineering - Traffic Calming Agenda Request File

		Engineering - Traffic Calming Backup

		1 Draft Principles for Use of Speed Tables.pdf

		2 Traffic Calming Devices 3.27.07

		3 2000 Economic Impact of Speed Humps

		4 speed_hump_brochure_2008[1]






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Fire and Emergency Services Presenter(s): M. Allen McCullough
Meeting Date: Wednesday, September 5, 2012 Type of Request: [New Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Fire and Emergency Services' staff will present architectural drawings of the proposed Fire Station No. 3 replacement design.

Background/History/Details:

Staff is currently working through the process of architectural design and bid document preparation for the replacement of Fire Station
Number Three with The Howell Group.

Currently, the schematic design and design development phases of the process are complete. The next phase will be the construction
document phase.

The supporting documents for this request are too large to include with this agenda request, however, they will be made available during
this workshop meeting.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
No action requested. This discussion is for informational purposes only.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? No

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:







COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Planning and Zoning Presenter(s): Pete Frisina
Meeting Date: Wednesday, September 5, 2012 Type of Request: |Old Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt proposed amendments to Ordinance 2012-11- Fayette County Code of Ordinances,
Part Il County Code, Chapter 3, Alcoholic Beverages, by establishing the correct time for Sunday sales to commence.

Background/History/Details:

On August 23, 2012, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners unanimously adopted Ordinance 2012-11 which approved proposed
amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Part Il County Code, Chapter 3, Alcoholic Beverages.

It was later discovered that the recent amendments that were reflected in Ordinance 2012-11 did not set, or establish, the correct time for
Sunday sales of alcohol to commence and conclude.

These corrections have been detailed in the memo provided with this request, and an amended ordinance has been prepared for the
Chairman's signature.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt proposed amendments to Ordinance 2012-11- Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Part Il
County Code, Chapter 3, Alcoholic Beverages, by establishing the correct time for Sunday sales to commence, and authorization for the
Chairman to sign the Ordinance 2012-11 as amended

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |Yes If so, when?  |Thursday, August 23, 2012
Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:






To: Board of Commissioners

From: Pete Frisina
Date: August 31, 2012
Subject: Corrections to Ordinance 2012-11 Regarding Sunday Sales

Recent amendments to the County Code regarding the Sunday sales of alcoholic beverages did not
reflect the correct time limitations as required by State law. These corrections are as follows:

Sec. 3-79. - Business hours and days.

(a) Retail dealers in vinous liquors shall not engage in the sale of such liquors except between the
hours of 7:00 a.m. and 11:45 p.m. Monday through Saturday and 12:30 p.m. and 11:30 p.m. on
Sunday and shall not permit their places of business to be opened for the sale of vinous liquors

on election days and Christmas Day.

Sec. 3-159. - Business hours and days.

(a) Retail dealers in malt beverages shall not engage in the sale of said beverages except between
the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 11:45 p.m. Monday through Saturday and 12:30 p.m. and 11:30 p.m.
on Sunday and shall not permit their places of business to be opened for the sale of malt

beverages on Christmas Day or election days.

Sec. 3-180.6. — Closing hours.

No licensee under this article shall sell, give away, or otherwise dispense alcoholic beverages
between the hours of 11:55 p.m. and 9:00 a.m. Monday through Saturday or between the hours of

11:55p.m. Saturday to 12:30 p.m. Sunday.

To reduce confusion for the alcohol licensees, staff is expediting these corrections. Thank you for your

swift consideration of these corrections and if you have any questions please contact me at 770-305-

6160.





Minutes

August 23, 2012

Page Number 5
OLD BUSINESS:
1. Consideration of staff’'s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2012-11 approving proposed amendments

to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Part Il County Code, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages.

Community Development Director Pete Frisina explained that a referendum occurred on July 31, 2012 to allow
alcoholic sales on Sunday, that the referendum passed overwhelmingly, and that Ordinance 2012-11 was
drafted to allow for the sales of alcohol on Sunday. Mr. Frisina also added that some additional changes were
made to the County Code that clarified some language pertaining to alcohol sales and pouring in Fayette
County.

Commissioner Horgan moved to adopt Ordinance 2012-11 approving the proposed amendments to the Fayette
County Code of Ordinances, Part II County Code, Chapter 3, Alcoholic Beverages. Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously. A copy of the request and
Ordinance 2012-11, identified as “Attachment 14", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.





State of Georgia;
County of Fayette

ORDINANCE NO. 2012 -11

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE CODE OF ORDINANCES, AS AMENDED,
SPECIFICALLY CHAPTER 3 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES, SO AS TO ADDRESS SUNDAY SALES
AND ADMINISTRATION SET FORTH THEREIN; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL
CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, AND RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW.

WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of Commissioners
thereof;

WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the regulation of
land development as allowed by the State of Georgia;

WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall be
improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY ANDIT IS
HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF:

Section 1. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article II. Wine as
amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-47. Application - Contents, in its entirety, and in lieu
thereof, enacting a new 3-47. Application - Contents to read as follows:

Sec. 3-47. - Application—Contents.
(a) All applications for licenses, both original and renewal, shall be submitted to the marshal’s office and
must be accompanied by a full and complete statement under oath of information relative to any and all
interests (as defined in section 3-26) in retail packaged vinous liquor stores. This shall include:
(1) The names and addresses of all persons interested in the ownership of the business of selling
at retail packaged vinous liquor, together with any interest each person or any member of his
immediate family has in any other retail packaged spirituous liquor store or vinous liquor store.

(2) The ownership of the land and building where such retail business is operated.

(3) The amount of rental paid for the land and building and the manner in which the same is
determined, and to whom and at what intervals it is paid.

(4) The names and addresses (by affidavit from the owner, lessor or sublessor of such land and
building) of all persons having any whole, partial, beneficial or other interest in and to the land

and building on and in which the retail packaged vinous liquor store is located.

(5) Any other information called for by the board of commissioners.





(b) Any change in any relationship herein declared must be filed with the marshal’s office when such
change is made, and failure to so file within a period of thirty (30) days after such change is made shall
be grounds for cancellation by the board of commissioners.

Section 2. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article II. Wine as
amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-51. Investigation of applicant: cooperation by
applicant, in its entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-51. Investigation of applicant: cooperation
by applicant to read as follows:

Sec. 3-51. - Investigation of applicant; cooperation by applicant.

(a) All applications for new licenses for sale of packaged vinous liquor at retail and all applications for
renewal of such new licenses shall be investigated by the marshal’s office. No such new or renewal
license shall be acted upon by the board of commissioners or issued by the marshal’s office until the
county attorney has indicated in writing that in his opinion, upon the facts as stated and ascertained by
the marshal’s office, no violation exists as to any ordinance in effect as of the date of the rendering of
such opinion. All applicants for new or renewal licenses shall furnish to the marshal’s office all data,
information and records requested of them by the marshal’s office. Failure of the applicant to furnish
such data, information and records within thirty (30) days from the date of the request by the marshal’s
office shall automatically serve to dismiss with prejudice the application of any such applicant.

(b) Applicants, by filing for a license to sell package vinous liquor at retail, agree to furnish the data,
information and records as called for herein and also agree to submit under oath to interrogation by the
marshal’s office or the county attorney as to any facts considered pertinent to such application.
Applicants, by filing such application, also agree to produce for oral interrogation by the marshal’s office
or the county attorney any person requested by the marshal’s office and considered as being important in
the ascertainment of the facts relative to the license. Failure to produce such persons within thirty (30)
days after being requested to do so shall result in the automatic dismissal of any application for license.

Section 3. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article II. Wine as
amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-56. - Procedure when license denied by state, in its
entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-56. - Procedure when license denied by state to read as
follows:

Sec. 3-56. - Procedure when license denied by state.

In the event the applicant for a license required by this division is denied a license by the state, upon the
proof of such refusal, he shall be entitled to a refund of the license fee, less the investigative fee as
required in section 3-54(a) (2), plus an additional charge of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) to cover clerical
cost of granting the license. Such refund may be made by the county marshal without the necessity of any
action by the board of commissioners.

Section 4. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article II. Wine as
amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-79. - Business hours and days, in its entirety, and in
lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-79. - Business hours and days to read as follows:

Sec. 3-79. - Business hours and days.

(a) Retail dealers in vinous liquors shall not engage in the sale of such liquors except between the hours
of 7:00 a.m. and 11:45 p.m. Monday through Saturday and 12:30 p.m. and 11:30 P.M. on Sunday and





shall not permit their places of business to be opened for the sale of vinous liquors on election days and
Christmas Day.

(b) An "election day", for the purposes of the sale of vinous liquors, means that period of time beginning
with the opening of the polls and ending with the closing of the polls

Section 5. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article II. Wine as
amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-82. - Employees; reports to police; investigation; fees,
in its entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-82. - Employees; reports to county marshal;
investigation; fees to read as follows:

Sec. 3-82. - Employees; reports to county marshal; investigation; fees.

(a) No retail licensee shall employ any minor, except as provided by state law, in his store, or in the
department of a store where vinous liquors are sold. No retail licensee shall employ in any premises used
for the sale of vinous liquors any person in any capacity whatsoever who has been convicted within ten
(10) years of the date of employment of a felony, or any violation of the laws of this state, any other state
or of the United States relating to the sale of alcoholic beverages.

(b) It shall be the duty of all persons holding retail or wholesale licenses to sell vinous liquors to file with
the county marshal the names of all employees, with their home addresses, home telephone numbers and
places of employment. Changes in the list of employees, with the names of new employees, must be filed
with the county marshal within three (3) days from the date of any such change. All employees shall be
subject to such investigative rules and regulations as may be deemed necessary from time to time by the
county marshal. A ten-dollar investigative fee shall be paid by all applicants.

(c) Atthe time of application or at the time a licensee hires a new employee, the licensee shall submit a
current one-square-inch photograph of such employee for placement upon that employee's identification
card. Photographs shall not be required for any licensed premise which employs fifteen (15) or more
employees.

(d) No licensee shall allow any person to engage in the sale of vinous liquors prior to the completion of a
satisfactory investigation by the business license department. Licensees in violation of this section shall
be liable for a fine of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) per employee engaged in such practice.
Subsequent offenses may subject licensee to suspension or revocation of his license.

Section 6. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article II. Wine as
amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-84 - Sanitary regulations; immoral conduct, etc.;
inspection and report by fire department, in its entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-84 -
Sanitary regulations; immoral conduct, etc.; inspection and report by fire department to read as follows:

Sec. 3-84. - Sanitary regulations; immoral conduct, etc.; inspection and report by fire department.
(a) All premises licensed under this article shall be kept clean and in proper sanitary condition and in full
compliance with the provisions and regulations governing the condition of premises used for the storage and

sale of food for human consumption.

(b) It shall be unlawful to permit any disturbance of the peace or obscenity or any lewd, immoral or improper
entertainment, conduct or practices on the premises.





(c) The fire department shall, upon request of the marshal’s office, inspect such premises and report their
findings to the county. All premises licensed hereunder shall conform at all times with all fire regulations of
the county.

Section 7. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article III. Malt
Beverages as amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-127. Application - Contents, in its
entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new 3-127. Application - Contents to read as follows:

Sec. 3-127. - Application—Contents.

(a) All applications for licenses, both original and renewal, shall be submitted to the marshal’s office and
must be accompanied by a full and complete statement under oath of information relative to any and all
interests (as defined in section 3-106) in retail packaged malt beverage stores. This shall include:

(1) The names and addresses of all persons interested in the ownership of the business of
selling at retail packaged malt beverages, together with any interest each person or any member
of his immediate family has in any other retail packaged malt beverage store.

(2) The ownership of the land and building where such retail business is operated.

(3) The amount of rental paid for the land and building and the manner in which the same is
determined, and to whom and at what intervals it is paid.

(4) The names and addresses (by affidavit from the owner, lessor or sublessor of such land and
building) of all persons having any whole, partial, beneficial or other interest in and to the land
and building on and in which the retail packaged malt beverage store is located.

(5) Any other information called for by the board of commissioners.

(b) Any change in any relationship herein declared must be filed with the marshal’s office when such
change is made, and failure to so file within a period of thirty (30) days after such change is made shall
be grounds for cancellation by the board of commissioners.

Section 8. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article III. Malt
Beverages as amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-131. Investigation of applicant:
cooperation by applicant, in its entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-131. Investigation of
applicant: cooperation by applicant to read as follows:

Sec. 3-131. - Investigation of applicant; cooperation by applicant.

(a) All applications for new licenses for sale of packaged malt beverages at retail and all applications for
renewal of such new licenses shall be investigated by the marshal’s office. No such new or renewal license
shall be acted upon by the board of commissioners or issued by the marshal’s office until the county attorney
has indicated in writing that in his opinion, upon the facts as stated and ascertained by the marshal’s office,
no violation exists as to any ordinance in effect as of the date of the rendering of such opinion. All
applications for new or renewal licenses shall furnish to the marshal’s office all data, information and records
requested of them by the marshal’s office. Failure of the applicant to furnish such data, information and
records within thirty (30) days from the date of the request by the marshal’s office shall automatically serve to
dismiss with prejudice the application of any such applicant.





(b) Applicants, by filing for a license to sell package malt beverages at retail, agree to furnish the data,
information and records as called for herein and also agree to submit under oath to interrogation by the
marshal’s office or the county attorney as to any facts considered pertinent to such application. Applicants, by
filing such application, also agree to produce for oral interrogation by the marshal’s office or the county
attorney any person requested by the marshal’s office and considered as being important in the ascertainment
of the facts relative to the license. Failure to produce such persons within thirty (30) days after being
requested to do so shall result in the automatic dismissal of any application for license.

Section 9. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article III. Malt
Beverages as amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-136. - Procedure when license denied
by state, in its entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-136. - Procedure when license denied by
state to read as follows:

Sec. 3-136. - Procedure when license denied by state.

In the event the applicant for a license required by this division is denied a license by the state, upon the
proof of such refusal he shall be entitled to a refund of the license fee, less the investigative fee as required in
section 3-134(a)(2), plus an additional charge of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) to cover clerical cost of granting
the license. Such refund may be made by the county marshal without the necessity of any action by the board
of commissioners.

Section 10. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article III. Malt
Beverages as amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-159. - Business hours and days, in its
entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-159. - Business hours and days to read as follows:

Sec. 3-159. - Business hours and days.

(a) Retail dealers in malt beverages shall not engage in the sale of said beverages except between the hours
of 7:00 a.m. and 11:45 p.m. Monday through Saturday and 12:30 p.m. and 11:30 p.m. on Sunday and shall
not permit their places of business to be opened for the sale of malt beverages on Christmas Day or election
days.

(b) An "election day", for the purposes of the sale of malt beverages, means that period of time beginning
with the opening of the polls and ending with the closing of the polls.

Section 11. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article III. Malt
Beverages as amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-162. - Employees; reports to business
license director; investigation; fees, in its entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-162. -
Employees; reports to county marshal; investigation; fees to read as follows:

Sec. 3-162. - Employees; reports to county marshal; investigation; fees.

(a) No retail licensee shall employ any minor, except as provided by state law, in his store, or in the
department of a store where malt beverages are sold. No retail licensee shall employ in any premises used for
the sale of malt beverages any person in any capacity whatsoever who has been convicted within ten (10)
years of the date of employment of a felony, or any violation of the laws of this state, any other state or of the
United States relating to the sale of alcoholic beverages.

(b) It shall be the duty of all persons holding retail or wholesale licenses to sell malt beverages to file with
the county marshal the names of all employees, with their home addresses, home telephone numbers and





places of employment. Changes in the list of employees, with the names of new employees, must be filed
with the county marshal within three (3) days from the date of any such change. All employees shall be
subject to such investigative rules and regulations as may be deemed necessary from time to time by the
county marshal. A ten-dollar investigative fee shall be paid by all applicants.

(c) At the time of application or at the time a licensee hires a new employee, the licensee shall submit a
current one-square-inch photograph of such employee for placement upon that employee's identification card.
Photographs shall not be required for any licensed premises which employs fifteen (15) or more employees.

(d) No licensee shall allow any person to engage in the sale of malt beverages prior to the completion of a
satisfactory investigation by the marshal’s office. Licensees in violation of this section shall be liable for a
fine of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) per employee engaged in such practice. Subsequent offenses may
subject licensee to suspension or revocation of his license.

Section 12. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article III. Malt
Beverages as amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-164 - Sanitary regulations; immoral
conduct, etc.; inspection and report by fire department, in its entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec.
3-164 - Sanitary regulations; immoral conduct, etc.; inspection and report by fire department to read as
follows:

Sec. 3-164. - Sanitary regulations; immoral conduct, etc.; inspection and report by fire department.

(a) All premises licensed under this article shall be kept clean and in proper sanitary condition and in full
compliance with the provisions and regulations governing the condition of premises used for the storage and
sale of food for human consumption.

(b) It shall be unlawful to permit any disturbance of the peace or obscenity or any lewd, immoral or improper
entertainment, conduct or practices on the premises.

(c) The fire department shall, upon request of the marshal’s office, inspect such premises and report their
findings to the county. All premises licensed hereunder shall conform at all times with all fire regulations of
the county.

Section 13. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article IV. On-Premise
Consumption Dealers as amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-180.1. - Authority and
definitions, in its entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-180.1. - Authority and definitions to read
as follows:

Sec. 3-180.1. - Authority and definitions.

(a) Authority.
(1) The provisions of this article pertaining to the sale of malt beverages by the drink for on-
premises consumption are enacted pursuant to the authority granted to the Board of
Commissioners of Fayette County by the State of Georgia.
(2) The provisions of this article pertaining to the sale of wine by the drink for on-premise

consumption are enacted pursuant to the authority granted to the Board of Commissioners of
Fayette County by the State of Georgia.





(3) The provisions of this article pertaining to the sale of distilled spirits, by the drink, for on-
premise consumption are enacted pursuant to the authority granted to the Fayette County Board of
Commissioners through a special election held July 20, 2004 pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 3-4-92 in
which the qualified voters of Fayette County elected to permit such sale of distilled spirits by the
drink within the unincorporated boundaries of the County of Fayette and O.C.G.A. § 3-4-110
authorizing the board to adopt reasonable rules and regulations regarding licensing for such sales.

(b) Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Alcoholic beverage means all wines, malt beverages, beers, distilled spirits, and fortified wines as
each is defined herein.

Distilled spirit means any alcoholic beverage obtained by distillation or any alcoholic beverage
containing more than twenty one (21) percent alcohol by volume, including but not limited to
fortified wine.

Fortified wine means any alcoholic beverage containing more than twenty-one (21) percent alcohol
by volume and made from fruits, berries, or grapes either by natural fermentation or with brandy
added. Fortified wine shall include but not be limited to the brandy.

Golf course means a large tract of land laid out with a minimum of eighteen (18) holes over a
distance of at least five thousand five hundred (5,500) yards, and used exclusively for playing golf.

Hotel means every building or other structure kept, used, maintained, advertised and held out to
the public to be a place where food is actually served and consumed and sleeping accommodations
are offered for adequate pay to travelers and guests, whether transient, permanent or residential;
and in which fifty (50) or more rooms are used for sleeping accommodations of such guests; and
having one (1) or more public dining rooms, with an adequate and sanitary kitchen and a seating
capacity of at least forty (40), where meals are served at least once a day to such guests; and where
the sleeping accommodations and dining rooms are being conducted in the same building or in
separate buildings or structures used in connection therewith that are in the same premises and are
a part of the hotel operations. Motels meeting the qualifications set out herein for hotels shall be
classified in the same category as hotels. Hotels shall have the privilege of granting franchises for
the operation of a lounge or restaurant in their premises and the holder of such franchise shall be
included in the definition of hotel hereunder.

Intoxicating beverage means and includes any beverage containing any percentage of alcohol
whatsoever.

Licensee means an establishment holding a license to engage in the sale of distilled spirits, wines,
or malt beverages by the drink, for consumption on the premises.

Lounge means a separate room connected with, a part of and adjacent to a restaurant, or located in
a hotel, as defined herein with all booths, stools and tables being unobstructed and open to view.
All lounges shall be air conditioned and have a seating capacity of at least forty (40).

Malt beverage means any alcoholic beverage obtained by the fermentation of any infusion or
decoction of barley, malt, hops, or any other similar product, or any combination of such products
in water, containing not more than fourteen (14) percent alcohol by volume and including ale,





porter, brown, stout, lager beer, small beer, and strong beer. The term does not include sake,
known as Japanese rice wine.

Premises means the definite closed or partitioned-in locality, whether room, shop or building
wherein alcoholic beverages are sold by the drink. For the purposes of this article only, premises
shall also mean all real property upon which a golf course is constructed.

Restaurant means any public place kept, used, maintained, advertised and held out to the public as
a place where food is regularly served, and having no sleeping accommodations. Such place shall
be provided with adequate and sanitary kitchen and dining room equipment and seating capacity of
at least forty (40) people, and shall have employed therein a sufficient number and kind of
employees to prepare, cook and serve suitable food for its guests. At least one (1) meal per day
shall be served for each day the premises are open, with the exception of holidays, vacations, and
periods of redecorating. The serving of such meals shall be the principal business conducted, with
the serving of alcoholic beverages to be consumed on the premises as only incidental thereto;
provided, however, at least sixty (60) percent of the annual gross income must be derived from the
sale of such meals served for consumption on the premises. Such receipts shall be certified by the
owner of the premises and reported to the marshal’s office on a quarterly basis.

Wine means any alcoholic beverage containing not more than twenty-one (21) percent alcohol by
volume made from fruits, berries, or grapes either by natural fermentation or by natural
fermentation with brandy added. The term includes, but is not limited to, all sparkling wines,
champagnes, combinations of such beverages, vermouths, special natural wines, rectified wines,
and like products. The term does not include cooking wine mixed with salt or other ingredients so
as to render it unfit for human consumption as a beverage. A liquid shall first be deemed to be a
wine at that point in the manufacturing process when it conforms to the definition of wine
contained in this section.

Section 14. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article IV. On-Premise
Consumption Dealers as amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-180.6. — Closing hours, in its
entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-180.6. — Closing hours to read as follows:

Sec. 3-180.6. — Closing hours.

No licensee under this article shall sell, give away, or otherwise dispense alcoholic beverages between the
hours of 11:55 p.m. and 9:00 a.m. Monday through Saturday or between the hours of 11:55p.m. Saturday to
12:30 p.m. Sunday.

Section 15. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article IV. On-Premise
Consumption Dealers as amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-180.7. - Holiday sales, in its
entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-180.7. - Holiday sales to read as follows:

(a) Sales on Christmas Day prohibited. Licensees under this article shall not permit the sale of any alcoholic
beverages on Christmas Day.

(b) Sales following New Year's Eve. Sales may continue until 1:00 a.m. on New Year's Day.
Section 16. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article IV. On-Premise

Consumption Dealers as amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-180.9. - Prices and charges
to be displayed; filed with business license department, in its entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec.





3-180.9. - Prices and charges to be displayed; filed with the marshal’s office to read as follows:
Sec. 3-180.9. - Prices and charges to be displayed; filed with the marshal’s office.

Any licensee under this article, except private clubs, shall display in prominent places the current prices of
alcoholic beverages by the drink; the volume of alcohol to be served from each alcoholic beverage container;
admission and cover charges. The licensee shall file a copy of such prices with the marshal’s office and shall
furnish to any customer that so desires an itemized bill of charges which shall not exceed the price list
furnished to the marshal’s office. Upon any increase or decrease of prices, a new list must be filed with the
marshal’s office.

Section 17. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article IV. On-Premise
Consumption Dealers as amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-180.60. - Form; data
requested, in its entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-180.60. - Form; data requested to read as
follows:

Sec. 3-180.60. - Form; data requested.

The board of commissioners shall have authority to prescribe forms for new or renewal applications under
this division. All applicants shall furnish all data, information and records requested of them by the board of
commissioners or marshal’s office, and failure to furnish such data, information and records within thirty (30)
days from the date of such request shall automatically serve to dismiss, with prejudice, the application.
Applicants, by filing an application, agree to produce for oral interrogation any person requested by the board
of commissioners, marshal’s office or the county attorney and considered as being important in the
ascertainment of the facts relative to such license. The failure to produce such person within thirty (30) days
after being requested to do so shall result in the automatic dismissal of such application.

Section 18. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article V. Excise
Taxes as amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-183. - Payment of taxes by wholesale
dealers, in its entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-183. - Payment of taxes by wholesale dealers
to read as follows:

Sec. 3-183. - Payment of taxes by wholesale dealers.

(a) The special or excise tax imposed upon sales under this article shall be paid by the wholesale dealer to
the finance director by the tenth of each month, based upon volume sold or distributed in the county limits
during the previous month.

(b) The wholesale dealer herein referred to shall be subject to all the conditions set forth in this article and
shall in all respects comply with this article, particularly with reference to the keeping of true and correct
records of all sales and shipments and the rendering of a sworn statement of the same as is provided.

Section 19. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article V. Excise
Taxes as amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-184 - Wholesale dealers required to collect
taxes from retail dealers; monthly reports, in its entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-184. -
Wholesale dealers required to collect taxes from retail dealers; monthly reports to read as follows:

Sec. 3-184. - Wholesale dealers required to collect taxes from retail dealers; monthly reports.

Wholesale dealers and distributors of products regulated by this article shall make a report to the finance
department within ten (10) days following the end of each calendar month of the total of such products sold





or distributed within the county limits during the previous month, and shall accompany such report with the
payment of the tax due at the above rate based upon the quantities of such products so sold the previous
month. Each monthly report shall be accompanied by a sworn statement that the report is a true and correct
report of all sales and shipments made within the county.

Section 18. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article V. Excise
Taxes as amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 3-185 - Wholesale dealers and distributors—
Records and reports, in its entirety, and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Sec. 3-185. - Wholesale dealers and
distributors—Records and reports to read as follows:

Sec. 3-185. - Wholesale dealers and distributors—Records and reports.
(a) The license tax imposed in this article shall be computable and payable monthly.

(b) Each wholesale dealer or distributor selling, shipping or delivering malt beverages, wines or spirituous
liquor to any retail dealer in the county, whether delivered to the retail dealer's place of business in the
county, or elsewhere for resale in the county, shall, as a condition to the privilege of carrying on such
business in the county, make a true and correct record of all sales, shipments or deliveries of such products to
each retail dealer in the county and immediately transmit a true and correct copy of such record to the finance
department. Such record shall show the name of each retail dealer to whom a sale, shipment or delivery is
made, the quantity, and such other information as may be called for by the county.

Section 19. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by
reference as if fully set out herein.

Section 20. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections,
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed by the
Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional.

b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed
by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is severable from
every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be
the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section,
paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section,
paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article.

c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any reason
whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree
of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of Commissioners that such
invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render
invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences,
paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases,
clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and
of full force and effect.

Section 21. All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are
hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein.

Section 22. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise specified
herein.

10





So ordained this 23rd day of August, 2012, by the

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA

HERBERT E. FRADY, CHAIRMAN

ATTEST:

CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK

11





		Planning and Zoning- Amend Or...12-11 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Amend Ordinance 2012-11 Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Amend Ordinance 2012-11 Backup-1

		Planning and Zoning- Amend Ordinance 2012-11 Backup-2

		Planning and Zoning- Amend Ordinance 2012-11 Backup-3






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Public Works Presenter(s): Phil Mallon & Carlos Christian
Meeting Date: Wednesday, September 5, 2012 Type of Request: [New Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Discussion of conceptual safety and operational improvements for the West Fayetteville Bypass, Phase 3 (SPLOST Project No. R-28b).

Background/History/Details:

On August 9, 2012 the Board of Commissioners directed staff to request that federal funds programmed for the WFB 3 (ARC project
number FA-235C) be reallocated to the East Fayetteville Bypass (ARC project numbers FA-263A and FA-236B). The BOC also directed
staff to identify concept-level safety and operational improvements along existing roads comprising the WFB 3, including concept-level
cost estimates.

For this exercise, staff identified various improvements along the existing roads, most of which are independent of one another. New
road construction was not considered, nor was the Ebenezer Church Road bridge replacement over Whitewater Creek, which is
scheduled for general federal aid in 2018 to 2030 (FA-349).

Graphical and/or narrative descriptions of the improvements, including costs, will be presented at the Workshop.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

No formal action is requested of the Board. Staff is seeking the Board's review, comments, and prioritization of safety and operational
improvements for the WFB 3.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

No funding required at this time; however, SPLOST 321 funds will be required if the Board directs staff to move forward with design on
one or more improvement projects along the WFB3 corridor.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* Yes Backup Provided with Request? No

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:







COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Public Works Presenter(s): Phil Mallon
Meeting Date: Wednesday, September 5, 2012 Type of Request: [New Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Discussion of conceptual alignments for the Georgia Department of Transportation's (GDOT's) McDonough Road Widening Project (P.I.
No. 742870).

Background/History/Details:

The Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) is performing preconstruction engineering work for the widening of McDonough Road
(SR 920). Over this summer staff has met with the GDOT's project team, and internally, to identify potential impacts to County facilities
along McDonough Road. Particular concerns include: 1) keeping left turn ability to County buildings; 2) providing safe and efficient travel
paths for visitors to McCurry Park (north and south); 3) assessing impacts to operations at the Water System; and 4) ensuring no
interruptions to E911 communications.

Three attachments are provided with this agenda request:

1. August 15th 2012 meeting minutes, which provide an overview of the project scope and impacts;
2. Aerial image with GDOT's recommended median breaks;

3. Aerial image with staff's recommended median break.

GDOT is waiting on input from Fayette County in order to finalize the concept design.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
No formal action is requested. Staff is seeking a general concensus from the Board to relay comments to the GDOT.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
No funding required at this time.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* Yes Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:






DRAFT
Notes from Fayette County Departments Regarding the

Widening of SR 920 (McDonough Road) from SR 54 to SR 3/U.S. 19

GDOT PI No. 742870
Meeting Date August 15, 2012

Purpose: To review the proposed widening project and solicit comments from various
County Departments. This information will be presented to the Board of Commissioners
and the GDOT project team.

Represented Departments:

e Administration ¢ Information Systems
e Community Development e Parks & Recreation
e E911 Communications e Public Works
e Engineering e Road
e Finance e Sheriff’s Office

e \Water System

Drawings: Concept plans by American Engineers, Inc. (AEI) dated August 14, 2012.

Project Overview:

1.

5.

The project is 5.78 miles and extends SR 54 in Fayette County to U.S. 19/41 IN
Clayton County.

Schedule: PE Authorized
ROW March 2014
CST July 2017

The project is designed as a 4-lane urban roadway. The typical cross section
includes:

four 11-ft lanes;

a raised median (grassed);

curb and gutter on both sides of roads;

4-ft bike lanes, each direction;

12-ft shoulders; and

5-ft sidewalks.

Right-of-way — 120 feet is typical around McCurry Park and most new right-of-
way is required from the southern side of the road.

hD OO o

The road will remain open to traffic during construction.

Comments:

1.

E911 Communications — The 911 Center is located on Volunteer Way and is the
sole communication center for all City and County 911 calls and dispatches. The
facility is also the training center for Fire and Emergency Management Services
so it is common for emergency response personnel and equipment to be on-site.

A large utility box is located immediately to the east of existing Volunteer Way.
It appears to be shown on the drawings and is located near the middle of the
proposed eastbound lane. This box is critical to all emergency/public safety

M:\Public Works\GDOT\Mcdonough Rd (SR 920) Widening\8-15-12 Meeting Notes.Docx





DRAFT

dispatch in the County. Communication to the facility cannot be interrupted.
Appropriate planning is needed to ensure continuous power, communication and
access to the 911 Center.

2. Bedrock and Utilities— Past County work around the intersections of McDonough
Road with Volunteer Way and County Line Road has revealed substantial
bedrock outcrops in this area. Besides the extra cost associated with bedrock
removal, this is noted because of potential impacts to the E911 utility box and
three key water lines in the area: a 24-inch line along McElroy Road; an 8-inch
line along north side of McDonough; and a 10-inch line along the south side of
McDonough.

3. Fiber Optic Cable — Fayette County Information Systems is in process of
designing and permitting installation of a new fiber optic cable along the south
side of McDonough Road to service the Public Works, Building and Grounds,
Water System, and E911 facilities. Construction is expected in the fall of 2012 or
spring 2013.

4. Utility Easements at existing McDonough Road and SR 54 — Water System
requested that existing ROW at this location be maintained (or protected in future
by easements) to accommaodate existing utility infrastructure. The County may
also be interested in maintaining this area as landscape green space once the
intersection is moved.

5. Public Works Septic — Sewage from the Public Works building is pumped to a
septic tank located behind the north soccer concession building. The waste line is
2-inch PVC inside a 4-inch steel casing. Contact us if assistance is needed to
locate this line during Subsurface Utility Engineering.

6. Water System — The Water System’s administrative office is located at 245
McDonough Road. Customer parking and the main entrance are located in the
front of the building. Under the proposed plan the new ROW would be
approximately 28 feet from the building. While the building is not required to
meet zoning setbacks, the required A-R front yard setback would be 100 feet if
applicable. Significant changes to the building’s layout, parking, driveways,
landscaping, and septic drain fields may be required.

7. Shooting Range for Law Enforcement — The Sheriff’s Office maintains a shooting
range on the south side of McDonough Road. There is concern that shifting
McDonough Road further south, especially if a frontage/access road or driveway
is also needed across the property, may impact use of this facility. Currently there
is 306 feet from the edge of existing pavement to the nearest shooting station.
Opportunities exist to modify parking area.

8. Multi-Use Path — All County staff preferred the installation of multi-use paths in
lieu of sidewalks and bike lanes. Reasons include: safety, consistency with other
areas in County; and better opportunity for access to park areas. The paths could
be located within the GDOT ROW or possibly on easement area outside the
ROW.

9. Underpass/Tunnel for Multi-Use Paths — McCurry Park receives heavy traffic
associated with youth soccer, football and baseball/softball. We believe a tunnel

M:\Public Works\GDOT\Mcdonough Rd (SR 920) Widening\8-15-12 Meeting Notes.Docx





DRAFT

beneath the road provides the most efficient and safe option for moving people
across the road and request that one be incorporated into the design.

10. Access — It is essential to maintain full left and right turn movements for the
Public Works/Fleet Maintenance, Building & Grounds, McCurry Park, Water
System and E911 facilities. Limiting any of these facilities to right-in, right-out
would have unacceptable impacts to traffic safety, public safety/emergency
response, and/or traffic efficiency. We recommend one centralized intersection
that provides access to frontage roads/drives on either side of McDonough. These
frontage roads/drives would be used to access the above-mentioned facilities, in
addition to select right-in/ right-out driveways. The centralized intersection
would preferably be controlled by signal or roundabout.

11. New Road Construction — Fayette County’s 2010 Comprehensive Transportation
Plan includes a long-range project (NW-020) to extend McDonough Road from
SR 54 to Banks Road. The purpose of this new capacity is to enhance the road
network and provide travel options around downtown Fayetteville. No design
work has been done on this project but the widening of McDonough will
appropriately generate renewed interest. A second phase of the new road
construction (NW-021) extends McDonough Road to SR 85.

END

M:\Public Works\GDOT\Mcdonough Rd (SR 920) Widening\8-15-12 Meeting Notes.Docx





Mew ROW
Mew Alignm ent

Median Cut






" _-i---
L LT
b

K _\F.' i
T

Mew ROW

New Alignment

Proposed M edian Cutl§






		Public Works - McDonough Road Widening Agenda Request File

		Public Works - McDonough Road Widening Backup

		Public Works - McDonough Rd Widening Backup

		A.pdf

		B

		C



		McDonough Road GDOT Median Breaks






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Public Works Presenter(s): Phil Mallon
Meeting Date: Wednesday, September 5, 2012 Type of Request: [New Business
Wording for the Agenda:

Discussion of additional compliance documents required for Fayette County's Public Works' Title VI Program.

Background/History/Details:

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d), and subsequent legislation, protects individuals from discrimination on the basis
of race, color, sex, national origin, disability or age in programs receiving federal financial assistance. Currently, Fayette County has two
transportation projects that are scheduled for federal aid. The following actions are required by the Board of Commissioners to ensure
compliance with the Title VI rules and regulations:

1. Adopt a Title VI Policy.
2. Adopt a Title VI Notice to Public.
3. Adopt a procedure for addressing external discrimination complaints (see draft Policy 404.04).

If adopted, the Policy and Notice to Public will be posted for public viewing on bulletin boards and on the County's web page. These
polices and procedures will complement the County's existing Nondiscrimination Agreement (which serves as the County's Title VI Plan)
and Title VI Assurances, both of which were adopted by the Board on October 13, 2011. Additionally, there are administrative standards
that will be met via changes to operating procedures by the Public Works, Purchasing and Human Resources Departments.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

No action is expected at this meeting. Staff anticipates the adoption of the proposed additional documents for Public Work's Title VI
Program at the September 13, 2012 Board of Commissioners meeting.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal Yes

Approved by Purchasing  |Yes County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval  |Yes

Staff Notes:






TITLE VI POLICY STATEMENT

Fayette County is committed to compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and all
related regulations and directives. Fayette County assures that no person shall on the grounds of
race, color, national origin, as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and the Civil
Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (P.L. 100.259) be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity. Fayette
County further assures every effort will be made to ensure nondiscrimination in all of its
programs and activities, whether or not those programs and activities are federally funded. In
addition, Fayette County will take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to services for
persons with Limited English Proficiency.

When Fayette County distributes federal aid funds to another governmental entity, Fayette
County will include Title VI language in all written agreements and will monitor for compliance.

Fayette County’s Equal Employment Opportunity Division (EEO) is responsible for initiating
and monitoring Title VI activities, preparing required reports and other Fayette County
responsibilities as required by 23 Code of Federal Regulation (CFR) 200 and 49 Code of Federal
Regulation 21.

Herbert Frady Date
Chairman
Fayette County Board of Commissioners





Title VI
NOTICE TO PUBLIC

U.S. Department of Justice regulations, 28 Code of Federal Regulations, Section 42.405,
Public Dissemination of Title VI Information, require recipients of Federal financial assistance to
publish or broadcast program information in the news media. Advertisements must state that
the program is an equal opportunity program and/or indicate that Federal law prohibits
discrimination.  Additionally, reasonable steps shall be taken to publish information in
languages understood by the population eligible to be served or likely to be directly affected by
the program. Following is the public notice used by Fayette County, Georgia.

Fayette County hereby gives public notice that it is the policy of Fayette County to assure full
compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of
1987, and related statues and regulations in all programs and activities. It is our policy that
no person in the United States of America shall, on the grounds of race, color, national
origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of or
be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any of our programs or activities.

Any person who believes they have been subjected to unlawful discriminatory practice under
Title VI has a right to file a formal complaint. The complaint must be filed in writing or in
person with Fayette County, Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Office (i.e., the Human
Resources Department), within one hundred eighty (180) days from the date of the alleged
discriminatory act or upon notice of the discriminatory act.

Title VI Discrimination Complaint Forms may be obtained by going to the County’s website
(http://www.fayettecountyga.gov/) or contacting the EEO at 770-305-5418.




http://www.fayettecountyga.gov/



FAYETTE COUNTY
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

HR — Conditions of Employment
Title VI Complaint Procedure
404.04
PURPOSE

Fayette County is committed to fully complying with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the
Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 and related statutes and regulations. A Title VI Coordinator
has been designated to oversee compliance.

POLICY

It is Fayette County’s policy that no one shall be excluded from the participation in, or be denied
the benefits of or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any of the County’s programs
or activities because of their race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability.

PROCEDURE

Person who feel that they as either individuals, members of any specific class or in connection
with any disadvantaged business enterprise have been subject to discrimination that is
prohibited by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, may file a complaint with the
Fayette County Title VI Coordinator or their designee. A representative acting on behalf of such
persons may also file a complaint.

Complaints must be submitted in writing or in person by the complainant and/or their
representative no later than 180 days after the date of the alleged discrimination or in the case
of a continuing course of conduct, the date when that conduct ceased. The complaint shall
specify in as much detail possible the facts and circumstances regarding the alleged
discrimination. The Title VI Coordinator or their designee will assist persons making verbal
complaints to convert them into writing and present the written version to the complainant for
their signature. Title VI Discrimination Complaint Forms may be obtained by going to the
County’s website and clicking on Fayette County Forms, Administration, and Title VI
Discrimination Complaint Form or by contacting the Title VI Coordinator at 770-305-5418.

The Title VI Coordinator or their designee will acknowledge receipt of the complaint within 10
days of it being submitted and inform the complainant of action taken or any possible action to
process the complaint.

Within 45 days of receiving the complaint, the Title VI Coordinator will conduct an investigation
and render a final determination. Informal efforts to resolve the complaint will be used
whenever possible and will be included with the final determination. The complainant will be
notified in writing of the final determination. The complainant will also be notified of their appeal
rights with the Georgia Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration in
the event they are not satisfied with the final determination issued by Fayette County.





		Public Works - Title VI Agenda Request File

		Public Works - Title VI Backup

		TITLE VI POLICY STATEMENT

		Title VI Notice to Public 8.22.12

		Title VI Complaint Procedure





